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1 drugs that came from --I like to say a disadvantaged
2 background.
3 He is now forging his own life and his own family, and he

4 doesn't want his children to feel the pain or suffer the life

that he had as a child, and he wants nothing -- wants his

children not to feel an ounce of that pain.

5

6

7 And I think that a short sentence, Judge,, and we're asking

for a year and a day, allows him to pay his debt for this case

and acceptance of responsibility for this case but also allows

him to go back to his family and continue to be that supportive

person that he can be and he has been for them.

10

11

12 I think that he has touched a lot of people's lives in

13 positive ways, notwithstanding what this Court has said earlier

14 about other conduct. I believe that he has done a lot to help

people who are going to go to that gang lifestyle that were

maybe close to how he was as a teenager.

them away from that.

15

16 He's trying to get
17 I think that's a very positive thing.

18 I think in terms of when we think of rehabilitation and

risk of recidivism under 3553 (a), I think he does not pose a

risk of recidivism, of coming back into a gang or selling drugs

or carrying a firearm.

all he wants to do is be a father and be a good family man and

provide for his family.

19

20

21 Those days are behind him. I think noW

22

23

24 For those reasons, Your Honor, we're requesting a year and

25 a day.
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1 THE COURT: Okay. Be fore I hear from Mr. Kelly, why

2 don't we take about a 15-minute break so I can give Stacy a

little break here, and we'll pick back up at 11 o'clock.
4 Noel, maybe it is best to let everybody stay on the phone.
5 Just leave it open.

Okay.

(A recess was had at 10:46 a.m.)

(The fol lowing proceedings were held in open court

beginning at 11:01 a.m., reported as follows :)

6 I'll see you in about 10 minutes, 12 minutes.
7

9

10 THE COURT: You can be seated.

11 Okay. We're back on the record in United States versus

12 Kash Lee Kelly, Cause Number 2 :15-CR-72. I've heard from

13 Mr. Adams

14 Now, Mr. Kelly, is there anything that you wish to say on

15 your oWn behalf before I sentence you, sir?

16 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
17 You know, everybody told me to write something to say to

18 you, and I couldn't. I'n like, I'm just going to speak.
19 Your Honor, I didn't have a dad. I'n going to start
20 there. I didn't have a dad, and the one that should have been

21 my dad abused the hell out of me because I was black.

world wanted me to be somebody dif ferent.

to be who I am today.

I should have been in prison or dead a long time ago.

become that person.

The

22 I was not supposed

23 If I was to go by the way my life went,

24 I didn't
25 I didn't let the things and circumstances
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1 I made theof 1ife determine what course I was going to take.

best decisions that I could with the knowledge that I had at

the time.

2

3

4 When I became a Latin King, I was a kid. I didn't know

I didn't have a f amily.that I wasn't supposed to be.

didn't have nobody looking out for me.

for ne, so I became a Latin King.

better, which was two years after I became a Latin King, I

didn't want to be a Latin King anymore.

dad.

5 I

I had them looking out

7 And as soon as I knew

8

I left it. I became a

10

11 And when I became a dad, that started my real change. I
so I started getting more for ny kids.

I didn't know what I was doing being a dad.

The only thing that I knew is that I didn't

I didn!t want
I didn't want my kids to feel

12 wanted more for my kids,

I started working.

I didn't have one.

13

14

15 want to be like the one that I had, the stepdad.

16 to be the one that hit his kids.

17 hurt.
1 But I stil1 lived in the hood. So when hard times fell, I

I'm sorry that Iknew that I could sel1 weed, and I'm sorry.

didn!t knoW better; but when I did learn better, when I got

arrested for that, prior to this, I left that alone.

sell weed even when hard times fell.

got public aid.

19

20

21 I didn't

22 I went to pantries. I

23 I did the right thing.

24 I became a really good dad. I'm not a good man; I got

25 flawS. But I'm a really good dad. I'm sorry for everything
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that has got ten me to be here when I was a kid. That's who is

on this paper is a kid.

them statements is a kid, not a man; a kid from over a decade

ago, not a man.

you have read about.

2 The person that's being lied about in

4 Not me. That's not who I am. Who I am is who

I made a mistake. I made a mistake in standing up for

7 what I believe in. I took a picture in a place that I probably

shouldn't have taken a picture.

that picture, but it was not wrong for me to be there.

not do anything wrong to get there.

I was going.

It was wrong for me to take

I did

10 I did not lie about where

11

12 Okay. Pertaining to this case, I have not been that

13 person in so long, so long. I have been a good dad and then

14 even a good member of society. I have put my life at risk in

15 this case. I have put my life at risk. People -- if you read
16 the othermessages, I' ve gotten threats, death threats.

gotten -- things happened to me.

worked at at ABC because of this case, where I sti1l back law

enforcement, where I still encourage people to stand up in

their community, "If you see something, say something."

I've
17 People came to my job where I

18

19

20

21 I've done all I could to become better, all that I could.

22 I'm not perfect.

a fter I get out of jail if I go to jail.

everyone is going to make more mistakes.

will never be perfect until I meet the One that made me.

I will makemore mistakes thoughout life

23

24

25

I'm going to --

I 'm not perfect. I
But
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1 I'm sorry for my flaws. I apologize.
2 Please don't stop me from being the one thing that I am

good at,
I'n a really, really good dad.

the day they came out of the womb, all of them.

3 the one thing that I don't have a flaw in. I'm a dad.

4 And I've raised my kids since

5 I have been

6 there. And even kids that I didn't make, I'm a father to them.

7 This is about justice. I'm all for justice. I preach

8 justice. Justice needs to be served for the kid that I was. I

9 was Wrong. I'm not asking to be let off the hook. I'm asking

let me go home to my kids onfor mercy.
home monitoring where I Will complete that proudly and come

back before you and the next time you see me you 'll be proud.

10 If at all possible,
11

12

13 Let me be a dad. Let me be a dad. I WOn't do nothing Wrong

1 4 I Won't lea ve my home. I won't leave anywhere.

15 But if I go to jail, the same kid that was created because

of fatherlessness or a bad father, you might be sitting in that

same seat looking at one of my kids one day because I wasn't

there to tell them not to do the things that I did or to

protect them from the things that they're going to learn about

that I should be there to protect them from, that I have

protected them from.

they are good kids

I do it.

16

17

18

19

20

They are A and B honor roll students, and21

22

23

24

I am there. I help with their homework.

Their mom wasn't there. I was there. I have been

there.
25 I'm just asking for your mercy. That' s it.
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1 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kelly.

Mr. Nozick, what's the government's position here?2

3

4

5

MR. NOZICK: Your Honor, we have handled, as you

know, a large number of sentencings; some simple, some not.

have handled some tricky ones.

and extremely unusual one.

We

This is an extremely tricky one

6

7 I have focused on the negative up until now, and we. are

8 talking about the actions in Washington and talking about the
9 actions, you know, about acceptance of responsibility.

10 I'd like to talk about the positive for a little bit
11 because there is a lot of positive, and I do think the

12 positives outweigh the negatives at this point.
13 Mr. Kelly, as you know, is the only individual in this

Indictment who is not charged with racketeering conspiracy.

is in a drug conspiracy.

believe you do, we need to show stuff on behalf

be in the RICO, we would have to show criminal conduct in the

Latin Kings within the -- membership and criminal Conduct

within the past five years prior to the Indictment.

of the Latin Kings for at least five years prior to the

Indictment, and that's why he's not charged with racketeering

Conspiracy.

14 He

15 As you know, or perhaps not, but I

16 in order to

17

18

19 He was out

20

21

22

So when he says "I left the Kings, " that is, to our

knowledge, correcti and we do not have anything to show within

five years, and we did not seek an Indictment charging him with

23

24

25
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1 a racketeering conspiracy.

2 However, he was still involved with drug dealing in the

five-year period up to that, selling to the Latin Kings, and

that is why he is in the drug conspiracy.

others where there are allegations of violence, there are not.

There's some allegations that this Court struck, but this

defendant is differently situated than the individuals who are

only in the racketeering conspiracy.

4 But as opposed to

5

9 And I understand the frustration. Wait, a guy leaves the

Latin Kings and gets out and they still end up charged in some

conspiracy, whether it's the RICO or drug conspiracy.

understand the frustration there, Judge.

defendant who has been charged after they have, for the most

part, gotten their lives together.

10

11 I can

12 He's not the first
13

14

15 Certainly, it is bad that he was still selling drugs to
I'm not minimizing that, but he had, at leastthe Latin Kings.

in part, renounced the 1ife.
1ife; and when we would ask about him to earlier cooperators,

they'd say:
that God thing now.

some dope, you know.

conspiracy.

16

17 He certainly renounced the gang

18

19 Not Kash. He's on that God stuff now. He's on

20 He's going to church, but he sti1l slings

21 And that's why he's in the drug

22

23 Turning next to his cooperation in this case. Judge,

24 normally we don't talk about it, but the Court has mentioned

25 the 5K and also de fense witnesses have mentioned cooperation
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1 and Mr. Kelly has mentioned his cooperation.

an early plea, especially someone who is, sort of, an old

school guy.
had been -- he had a vast amount of knowledge of the Latin

Kings.
plea, I believe, and he gets credit for that.

He pled early on,

2

3 He is older than some of the other de fendants. He

4

5 A plea such as Mr. Ke1ly's got a lot of other people to

6

7 He also had a lot of information not just on the Latin

Kings but that we used in other gang investigations and other

shootings; and he was, I believe, completely sincere and

truthful in his cooperation.
didn't try and make things up.

lies.

8

9

10 He told us what he knew. He

11 We didn't catch him in any

12 He was easy to deal with, if you will, and that's it.

13 I have Chris Gootee here, if necessary.
14 THE COURT: Had he been called to testify in the

15 Jeremiah Farmer trial, what would he have testified to? You

16 made a reference to that.

17 MR. NOZICK: Correct, Judge. I listed him as a

18 Witness. A lot of the Latin Kings that we charged didn't have

that much knowledge of Farmer since Farmer was locked up for a

period of time prior to the Indictment.

guys didn't know Farmer.

19

20 So some of the younger

21 They knew of him, knew he was a King.

22 Whereas, Mr. Kelly had been in the Kings at some of the

same time with Mr. Farmer and had knowledge of Farmer's violent

activities for the Latin Kings, carrying a weapon, violence,

unpredictable nature.

23

24

25
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As I sit here today, Judge, I can't remember more

2 specifics. If you want to hear from Mr. Kelly, he could flesh

3 it out, but he had good information on him. He was listed as a

witness. We di dn't call him through no fault of Mr. Kelly's.

I believe he would have made a fine witness.

less is more in these cases and evidence is cumulative.

that was sort of a volatile trial, as you know, with

Mr. Fa rmer's erratic behavior, and cutting it short might have

At some point,

And

8

been best. But I strongly believe that Kash Kelly would have

10 been seen as truthful, and he would have been helpful in the

11 trial.
12 There's also other investigations that he helped us in,

13 and we've done the 5K motion for him, which I believe is fair

14 for six levels.
15 Now, I think equally important, perhaps even more

16 important, are 3553 factors prior to the Washington matter

17 what he did while out on bond prior to Washington.

18 Mr. Kelly had a large -- or has a large social media

He had been involved in, you know, religious stufffollowing.
before; and at some point in time, Task Force 0fficer Gootee

called to my attention a Facebook live video.

this is the same one that had been referenced, perhaps, by

Mr. Russo

during the rioting over George Floyd and the violence towards

police, burning of our cities, an extremely volatile time.

19

20

21 And I believe

22

23 There was a Facebook live video, and this is all

24

25
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1 And my attention was called to a Facebook live video.

Mr. Kelly is sitting in a car.

and he goes on Facebook live.

defense has had a chance to see it.

2 He has a white undershirt on,

3 And I don't know if the Court or
4 I know Mr. Kelly has, of

5 course, and knows which one I'm referring to. And it was
6 extremely compelling.

the message was fantastic.

Mr. Russo has talked about the message.

A number of agents and I watched it, and

7 And both the defendant and

It was one of nonviolence, stop gang violence, stop gun

1 violence; do not be violent towards the police; there's a way

to protest peacefully; the police are not our enemy even if

they are sometimes the ones that act in a manner that is

unjustified; the police are not our enemy and stop violence

towards them.

11

12

13

14

15 So, in addition, he said things against the "stop the

16 Snitching movement."
out there in certain neighborhoods not to cooperate with the

police.
put on websites and social media the names of people who

cooperated; and, certainly, those people, I'm sure at least

some of them, have been the subject of violence and the victims

of violence.
cooperate, and people are scared to cooperate.

scared of violence, and they somehow think that they are doing

Something wrong or immoral.

As you knoW, there's a lot of pressure

1 7

18 So there's a stop the snitching movement where people

19

20

21

22 And there's intense pressure, as you know, not to

23

24

25

And people are
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1 And Mr. Kelly has, as he mentioned, talked about the "see

Something, say something," or whatever the movements on the

other side are.

difficult for a police officer to say or it wouldn't resonate
if an officer said it, wouldn't resonate when a politician said

it.
gang member, saying, "You need to cooperate with the police

when you know something" and, you know, saying things such as

"Black lives need to matter even when it's not a police officer

shooting someone"

take stances, but he was saying commonsensical things i that if

someone is shot in your neighborhood and you're a witness,r

you're not helping the victim, you're not helping the victim's

family, you' re not helping society by not cooperating with the

police; and if you believe that black lives matter, then you
should be helping solve murders in your neighborhood.

2

3 Mr. Kelly came out in a way that would be

4

5

6 But Mr. Kelly, who grew up in that environment and Was a

7

8

10 and I'm not trying to be political here or

11

12

13

14

15

16

17 Without being political, that is a commonsensical thing,
18 and preaching against gun violence and against garng membership

is an inherent good that I think we could all believe in across

all sides of the polit ical spectrum.
19

20

21 So I believe -- seeing these videos, I believe-- I know

22 Mr. Kelly has a large number of followers, tons and tons and

tons of comments, some people got on board early with religious

stuff, some people who got on board later.

wants to and can and could and did make some difference.

23

24 I believe Mr. Kelly

25 And I

Stacy L. Drohosky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
(219) 852-3462 - stacy_drohosky@ innd. uscourts.gov



Page 56

believe, at least at that period of time, he was a voice of

reason during an extremely volatile time.

lot of good that he has done, and I think that that should be

considered in the 3553.

1

2 So I think theres a

3

4

5 I don't think I need to bang the drum on how seriously --

6 or bang the drum anymore, if you will, on how seriously I see

the actions in Washington.

justified.
seen the criminal complaint.

that.
the U.S. Attorney's 0ffice in Washington D. C. has made their

point on how they see that, and he has already lost the points

for acceptance of responsibility.

He made statements saying it was
8 I'm not going to argue about that. The Court has

I'm not going to argue about

10 I've made my point about how I see thati and, certainly,

11

12

13

14

15

I'm open to questions, but those are the government's

arguments. I apologize if I have been long-winded, but there's
16 a lot to, sort of,

different things going on, and I believe this is an extremely,

extremely difficult one.

let marinate here. There's a lot of

17

18

19 I will tell you that he was my witness and he was my

20 COoperator. He, from the start, was extremely pleasant to deal

21 With. He is articulate. He is Smart. I believe he can do

22 good in this world, and I really, really wish that he didn't

get wrapped up in what he got wrapped up in Washington.

wOuld have been a much, much easier date.

argue with him or with you about how it was.

23 Today
24 I don't want to
25 I wish it didn!t
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Our jobs would be a lot easier. It was extremely poor1

2

3

happen.

judgment, in my opinion.

That is it, Judge. We made our second sentencing

4 recommendation. As you know, these go al1 the way up the line

to the U.S. Attorney or Acting U.S. Attorney.

has requested 87 months .

before it, and I know this Court wants to get it right.
know this Court spends a lot of time preparing for these

sentencings, and I have faith that you wil1 fashion a just

5 The gOvernment

This Court has a lot of information

7 And I
8

9

10

11

12

sentence.
THE COURT: A1l right.

Mr. Adams, did you want to say anything -- I will give you

13 guys just one last chance because Mr. Nozick went on at length.

14 I will give you the last and final word, Mr. Nozick.

15 Did you want to say anything else, Mr. Adams?

16 MR ADAMS: May I have one moment with Mr. Kelly?

17 THE COURT: Yeah, sure.

18 (Discussion held off the record between counsel and the

19 de fendant. )

20 MR. ADAMS : Judge, Mr. Kelly would like to address

21 the Court if that's okay.
22 THE COURT: Sure. I Will hear from you again,

23 Mr. Kelly.
24 THE DEFENDANT: First, thank you. I appreciate that.

25 Your Honor, like I said, man, I apologize. I apologize
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Because of ny actions, everybodythat I even have to be here.

here is put in this situation.

is difficult.
assuming, and give out sentences, and I know that's difficult.

I apologize that I have to be a person that you have to cast a

1

2 I apologize. I know your job

You have to look at people every day, I'm

A

6 sentence on.

I might be a fool for asking, but I'm going to for the

The longest homesake of my children.

monitoring or jail incarceration at home -- I don't know how to

interpret it or how to say it -- in the history of America
would be fine with me.

8 I'm asking to go home.

10

11 wouldn't mind sitting at home because

12 I will be able to provide for nyI can provide for them.

children sitting at home.

okay.
able to talk to them when they go through something, to be

there.

13 I wil1 be able to make sure they are

14 I Wil1 be able to make sure they are safe. I Will be

15

16 I wil1 be able to be a father.

17 And al1 the things that happened last year, the 2020 with

the riots and what made me make the videos and all those

things, I want the world better for my kids.

what I do.

18

19 That's why I do

20 I make stupid decisions sometimes, yes. I'm sorry.
21 Itry not to. And I will do my best, I guarantee you, to not

22 ever make a bad decision again that will lead me to be here.

23 But, Judge, it's not going to benefit anybody for me to be

24 away. It's gonna ta ke money away from people that work for me

25 to be incarcerated. It's going to put my children at risk of
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me being a 1iar to them because I tell them to have faith in

the justice system, have faith in God.

The system is not out to get you.

They're not going to understand even though I get it.

It's going to work out.
3 They are not out to get me.

I get whatever sentence you're going to give me today is5

6

7

just. I believe that because I've looked you up before all of

this. I know that you are a just man. I know you are not

8 going to do anything that's not put on you by God. God is in

9 control of this. You are the tool the same way I was the tool

10 in 2020 to bring people together.

11 So what I'm asking -- I know he's asking for one year and

I know they' re asking for what they're asking foI,one day.

but the ultimate decision maker is you.

If that doesn't happen, I understand, and thank you.

just got to ask for the sake of my children.

12

13 I'm asking to go home.

14 But I

15

I understand.16

17

18

THE COURT:

There was one other question that I had that I meant to

ask you before you yiel ded the floor, Mr. Nozick.

19 MR. NOZICK: Yes, Your Honor.

20 THE COURT: There seems to have been â disconnect in

this case as it relates to Mr. Kelly that I -- I know he pled

guilty and admitted to a certain quantity of cocaine, but at

his plea hearing -- I remember this because I take notes during

the plea hearing so that three years later when I'n sentencing

somebody I have -- if it is important to me.

21

22

23

24

25
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1 And at the plea hearing, I think, he was pretty adamant

2 that his only involvement was in selling marijuana, and that
3 has sort of come out here today as well.

4 Can you comment on that from your perspective.

5 MR. NOZICK: I can, Judge. If I could take a minute

6 and look at the plea transcript because we did -- Mr. Lanter

handled it with me here.
a number of times.

7 And we did sort of go back and forth

Let me could you give me two minutes here?

10 THE COURT: Of Course. I actually didn't have a

1 chance to review it. I was just going off of my notes.

12 MR. NOZICK: Judge, do you have a copy of the

13 transcript?
14 THE COURT: I don't. Not at my ready reference.

15 MR. NOZICK : Okay. Judge, if it's agreeablewith
16 defense, I'm going to mark some sections of the transcript for

17 you, or I can just read it, whatever the Court prefers
18 THE COURT: Sure Why don't you just read it for me.

19 MR. NOZICK: So he starts out where he pleads to a

20 lesser-included charge with a lesser quantity.

10-year min. man., it's a five.

Latin Kings in 2006.

I had seen then sell cocaine and marijuana, and I sold

marijuana, along with them.

Instead of
21 He says that: I joined the

I joined the organization. At that time,22

23

2 4

25 You flesh out with him membership in the Kings, how he is

Stacy L. Drohosky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
(219) 852-3462 - stacy_drohosky@innd. uscourts. gov



Page 61
1 initiated.
2 You ask him:

Now, at some point did you -- this is on
3

page 21, 1ine 16 -- at sone point did you then start getting
4

involved with these other Latin Kings in selling marijuana and
5 cocaine?
6 Answer: Yeah, I sold marijuana .
7

Question -- this is the Court -- how about cocaine?
Answer: I was more of a user of cocaine. I bought it9 from them and knew that they sold it.

10 Question: So how often were you selling with the Kings?
1: Answer: From '06 to '09 for sure I was selling marijuana.
12

You keep fleshing that out, who is supplying him. He
13 it is all publicrecord. He mentions a man named ugo, who I
14 believe to be Hugo Gill. He was not indicted in this case.
15 He gets into his marijuana-selling history, which I don't
16 need to flesh out. You talk quantities of marijuana With him,
17 quarter pound to a pound like every two weeks or a week.

18 You ask him again -- this is the top of page 25, Judge --

Now, the Indictment, again, talks in ters, and yourOkay.

plea agreement talks in te rms of cocaine as well, but you said

a few times today that it was just marijuana.

maintain?

19

20

Is that what you21

22

I didn'tAnswer: I'm under oath, so I don't want to lie.23

sell cocaine. I was around while they sold cocaine, and I did24

cocaine. As a conspiracy, like, I did know they25
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Question -- line eight -- did you assist thea at all in

the ir sale ofcocaine?
3 Answer: Like, yeah, I would buy it, and I would bring

4 people to buy it or I would tell them if somebodyneeded it.
5 So that, Judge, is part of dealing in cocaine

6 bringing buyers. So he is close with the highertransactions,
suppliers.
cocaine sales; and if you are telling them about customers that

need it, you are facilitating their drug transaction.

know, that is part of the cocaine conspiracy.

7 When you bring them buyers, you are part of the

And, you

10

11

12

Furthermore, Judge, we don't need to discuss Pinkerton

liability, but, clearly, whensomeone is posting up, they are

facilitating cocaine sales
in the neighborhood,

dealers, rival gang members.

we're talking about just a rank-and-file soldier who never sees

more than a gram of any drugs and he's hit with the whole

weight of the conspiracy.

13 By posting up, I mean being armed

14 looking out for police, rival drug
15 And this isn't a situation where

16

7
18

19 This is someone who, if you are playing the role of

Enforcer or Inca, you have knowledge of the drug trade that is

goíng on; and when you are setting up buyers with sellers of

cocaine -- even if he doesn't touch the cocaine, Judge, when

you are setting up buyers and sellers, you're part of the

conspiracy with cocaine and not just marijuana, and that is why

he agreed in the plea agreement to that quantity, Judge.

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 Question -- line eight -- did you assist then at all in
2 their sale of Cocaine?
3 Answer: Like, yeah, I would buy it, and I would bring

4 people to buy it or I would tell them if somebodyneeded it.
5 So that, Judge, is part of dealing in cocaine

transactions, bringing buyers.
suppliers.
cocaine sales; and if you are telling them about customers that

need it, you are facilitating their drug transaction.

6 So he is close with the higher

7 When you bring them buyers, you are part of the

8

9

10

And, you

know that is part of the cocaine conspiracy.
1 1 FurthermOre, Judge, we don't need to discuss Pinkerton

12 liability, but, clearly, when someone is posting up, they are

facilitating cocaine sales.
in the neighborhood,

dealers, rival gangmembers.

we're talking about just a rank-and-file soldier who never sees

more than a gram of any drugs and he's hit with the whole

weight of the conspiracy.

13 By posting up, I mean being armed

14 looking out for police, rival drug
15 And this isn't a situation where

1 6

1 7

18

19 This is someone who, if you are playing the role of

20 you have knowledge of the drug trade that isEnforcer or Inca,

going on; and when you are setting up buyers with sellers of

cocaine -- even if he doesn't touch the cocaine, Judge, when

you are setting up buyers and sellers, you're part of the

conspiracy with cocaine and not just marijuana, and that is why

he agreed in the plea agreement to that quantity, Judge.

21

22

23

24

25
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1 NOw, if this Court wants to hear more about -- if there

are people who told us, you know, that he did also sell

cocaine, I would have to go dig that up on a break.

foreseeing it since we agreed to the quantity.

2

3

I WaSn't
4

Does that address the Court's question?
THE COURT: It does.

7 MR. NOZICK: Thank you, Judge.
THE COURT: Did you want to respond to that,

Mr Adams?

10 MR. ADAMS: No, Your Honor. I mean, it was agreed to
11 in the plea. Just with respect to the plea colloquy, Judge, on
12 page 25, after the government --
13 THE COURT: Mr. Adams, can I get you into the
14 microphone there.
15 MR. ADAMS : I'm sorry, Judge

As it relates to page 25 of the plea agreement, the

government did recite line -- yeah, I would buy it -- this is

16

17

18 Mr. Kelly speaking: Yeah, I would buy it. I WOuld bring
19 people to buy it, and I would tell them if somebodyneeded it.
20 And the Court 's response was: This is weak.

2 1 And then Mr. Lanter responded about how Mr Kelly assisted
in the sale of cocaine and that he indicated he would bring

buyers to other members of the Latin Kings,

the quantity came from,

22

23 and that's where

24 Your Honor.

25 THE COURT: Okay . All right.
stacy L. Drohosky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
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Nr. Řelly, in any sentencing, there's a lot of things I

have to take into consideration when I sentence people, and

these are all laid out in the federal sentencing statute,

the starting point is always the United States Sentencing

Guidelines.

And

5 That's the starting point, and that's why we went

through that exercise of tryìng to arrive at what is the

appropriate sentencing guidelines range in this case.

that's the starting point.

6

So

8

9 And I think I have -- I know you disagree. I appreciate

that, but I feel li ke we have properly computed the sentencing

guidelines in this case.
take into account when I sentence people, what does Congress,

through the Sentencing Commission, believe is an appropriate

sentence given all the facts and circumstances of the case.

10

11 And that's one factor that I have to

12

13

14

15 THE DFENDANT: Yes, sir.
16 THE COURT: The guidelines in this case recommend a

17 sentence of 14 years in prison.

recommend, 168 months in prison.

have to take into account.

That's what the guidelines

18 That's certainly something I

19

20

21

22

But, of course, there's a whole host of other factors that

I also have to take into account that are set out in the

sentencing statute.
circumstances of the offense.

I have to look at the nature and

23 In other words, what did you do,

24 what was the conduct that brought you here? That's no

25 surprise, of course. I have to look at the nature of your
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offense.
2 But I also have to look at your personal history ànd

That's just as important of a factor when Icharacteristics.
sentence people.

that I sort of approach this as a holistic approach.

to do that, and I try to be meticulous in my approach to

sentencing because the stakes are so very high for people.

3

4 And Mr. Nozick has sort of touched on this,

5 And I try

6

8 Under this first factor-- first you look at the
guidelines, then you l0ok at what you did, and then I look at

who you are as a person.

I hope fully will impose a sentence that's going to reflect the

seriousness of the offense, it's going to promote respect for

the law, will provide just punishment.

9

10 And then when I arrive at a sentence,

11

12

13

14 I have to be concerned with deterrence of criminal

There's specific deterrence, that is, trying to get15

16

17

activity.
you from committing additional crimes.

concerns about specific deterrence in this case.

about this in a minute.

in how you approach life and the manner in which you do that,

so I have very little concern about specific deterrence in this

I have very low

We'll talk

18 You've had a seed change in your life

19

20

21 case.
22 But I also have to be concerned with general deterrence,

23

24

25

sending a message to the community that, hey, if you are going

to join a gang and sling a bunch of dope and engage in crazy

behavior, there's going to be a Consequence to that so that

stacy L. Drohos ky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
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1 other people wil1 hear that and hopefully get the message that

2 it!s not a good idea to be engaging in that kind of behavior.

3 Another important consideration, and this is something
that none of the lawyers have touched upon, but I think is

really important, and that's the need to avoid unwarranted

sentencing disparity among sinilarly situated defendants

4

6

That 's an impOrtant factor because, as you might imagine, in a

8 case like this, I think there's 38 or 40 defendants in this

9 And then there was probably 6 or 10 others that kind ofcase.
10 were related, weren't charged in this case but were sentenced

11 in conjunction with this giant Latin King conspiracy.

12 And you're on the very end of this. I have sentenced, I
And I

think,
keep a running total of this.
and-- because I can't possiblyrememberall of this.
try to go back and look at, you knoW,
defendants because I want there to be a fairness vis-a-vis one

I don't know, probably 45 people at this point.13

14

15

16

17

You know, I keep a spreadsheet
And so I

how did I treat other

another.
And not just actual fairness but the perception that

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

it's fair, you know, that if you're -- you know, pick a name.
If you're Francisco Ganez and you are sitting in federal prison
right now serving a 115-month prison sentence, you know,

there's a sense that you have to treat people fairly vis-a-vis

one another.
that 's anothe factor that I have to take into account,

need to avoid unwarranted disparity.

But
I Wil1 talk about that in a second here.

the
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1 It is important to reflect, it"s unwarrantedsentencing
disparity.
specific and unique consideration because they are speci fic and

unigue.
individuali zed approach to sentencing, but you have to do it

through a larger prism of, you know, what did you do with other

people.

2 Everybody is an individual. Everybody gets my

3

4 No two people are alike. So yOu have to bring an

5

6

7 So that's a factor I have to take into account.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
9 THE COURT: And surely you understand that.

10 THE DEFENDANT: I do

11 THE COURT: So, ultimately, my goal is to take into

12 account all of these varying factors, many of which conflict

with one anothner,

versus mitigating factors,
makes sense and that's a fair sentence and do it with a goal of

arriving at a sentence that is sufficient but not greater than

necessary to achieve the goals of sentencing.

I'1l do in this case, 1ike I do every other day when I sit

13 and try to balance them out, aggravating

14 and try to arrive at a sentence that

15

16

17 So that's what

18

19 here.
20 As you might imagine, this is an extremely challenging

case for the Court because it's not very often that I get

somebody who has fundamentally done a 180 in life and has

really, really changed the dynamic of their life, and so that

presents one challenge.

21

22

23

2 4

25 So there's a lot of things to point at here. Let's talk
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You 're a nember of the Latin1

2

3

about the offense, first of all.
Kings These are some of the most violent people you would

ever want to meet. I can't imagine -- I have sat here for the

last decade, pretty much,
gang cases, Imperial Gangsters With a death penalty trial; we

had the Latin Counts -- or the Latin Dragons.

Two-Six Nation, the Latin Kings.
you know, somewhere between 20 and 50 defendants.

lot of experience deali ng with this.
opening to me--

and handled a couple hundred of these

5

I had the

7 Each one of these involved,

I have had a

Boy, has it been eye
10

11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
12 THE COURT : -- what goes on in these neighborhoods

13 and just how inconsequential life is.
shooting at each other for no good reason other than they are

wearing the wrong hat or they look at somebody the wrong way or

they flash a gang sign that's opposite the one they belong to,

and so these gangs are super violent.

here to lecture you.

These people are just

14

15

16

17 You know that. I'm not

18 You understand that better than I do.

19 So, you know, you made the decision -- and we'11 talk

about the context in which you made the decision.20

21

22

23

24

25

You are a

kid. I understand that. But, nonetheless, you make the

decision.
of behavior to include arming yourself, selling drugs,

assistingr
of cocaine, selling marij uana yourself, furthering the

You join the Latin Kings, and you engage in a series

at the very least, in the sale of large quantities
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interests ot the gang. playing an aggravating role in the sense
that yeu munt have been respected to ríse within the ranks of

the gang-
and, obviously, how put together you are.

to me that you would have risen in the ranks of the gang.

Ihat doesn't surprise ne given how srart yau &re

It's at surprising

Ive learned that people get routinely beat into the gang.
If they want to be in the Latin Kings and in their gocd gra ces,
they subait thenselves to a vicious beatíng n order to have
the hcnor to be a nember of the Latin Kinga.

Can't even conceive of that concept.

I don"t even - 1
10

RE DEFENDANT: It's stupid.
12 THE COURT: But I knOw that that happens. Surely you

23 participated in either being beat inte the gang or

participating in seeing cther people treated that way.
con* have te go on at length here to say it's a serious

14

25

16

27

oflense
THE DEFENDAN? : Yes, Le.
TRE COURTI You 302n a atin King conaptracy and then

4drsg conspiracy of thls Gadth te's a very serioua19

20

22

22

23

24

25

ottess.
Yos ssw, 1 đss't bave ch ideace teentof e f yo

Bpecificaliy engaqing ie vioient acta on behait of the Latin

Kings- Aswe talked about esrlier, therets sone biSts to i.
but 'n aot putting any w*ight oa it Because opsrate oa
evidence, net ensuppesiticnsandsa, yos kno, this i sn"t
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1 case -- believe me, I have had Latin Kings in here and other

gang members.
in that regard, they are going away because that's just beyond
the pavement.

If they are shooting people and harming people
3

4

5 THE DE FENDANT: I agree.
6 THE COURT: So that's not this case.

So let's talk about your criminal history. Your criminal

history is --
frankly.
It's by virtue of two juvenile adjudications that were joined
together.
points for these separate incidents when you 're l6 years old.

I think it's fundamentally unfair that the guidelines even
point juvenile adjudications into criminal history.
don't think that's the way it should work.

you know, it's modest. I think it's overstated,
The criminal history III is overstated, candidly.

10

11 They were adjudicated at the same time, but you got

12

13

14 I just

15

16 You do have one conviction of -- I hate to say not

17 particularly serious-- of a felony offense of a handgun, no

permit, dealing with some incident in a laundromat.

that, you know, you were acquitted on a couple of cases-- I

found interesting -- with some dispute you must have had with

one of your half brothers who goes by the name of J.S.

a reference in paragraphs 54 and 55.

quilty on those offenses, so I 'm not going to put particular

weight on it.

18 I do know

19

20

21 There's
22 But you were found not

23

24

25 You seem perplexed when I'm referencing that.
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1 MR. NOZICK: Your Honor, when you say "goes by the

2 name of, " it is probably a juvenile and they are using the

inítials J.S., I imagine.
THE COURT: What did I say?

5 MR. NOZICK: You said "goes by the name of J.s." It
is probably a juvenile sibling with initials J.S.

7 THE COURT: The initials being J.s. just to protect
8 the person'"s identity.

But, in any event, there must have been some altercation,

some f amily dispute, back in 2013 and 2014.
joined together for the trial, and the defendant was found not

guilty.
doesn't sound like a particularly positive incident, let's be

real about it.

10 But they were

11

12 I don't know what happened in that incident, but it
13

14

15 THE DEFENDANT: No, it wasn't.
16 THE COURT: So I just make note of that.

17 So let's talk about your personal and family history,

which is just, you know -- on the one hand, it's terrible, but

it's also typical of what I have seen over the last couple of

decades doing this.

18

19

20

21

22

You are born in 1988. Although the presentence report --

by the way, there's a typo. It says the defendant was born in

23 1998. He was actually born in 1988. His dad was murdered when

24 he was three years old. He was raised in à very, very tough

25 neighborhood under very difficult circumstances.

Stacy L. Drohos ky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
(219) 852-3462 - stacy drohoskylinnd. uscourts.gov



Page 72

1 His mother -- I hate talking disparagingly about parents,

but it doesn't seem like his mom did right by him in the sense

of she's a serious drug addict and has serious personal

problems.
stepdad who was, if you believe the presentence report, and I

do, was very abusive and treated the defendant in just an

awful, awful way, as the defendant alluded to here today.

2

3

4 She married some fella who became the defendant's

5

7

He and his siblings were left abandoned much of the time.

He watched his grandfather get run over by a car; saw his

grandmother OD.

neighborhood.
understatement.

10 Saw 1ots of gang shootings in the

11 And so to call this turbulent is an

12 But, on the other hand, sadly, it's fairly
13 typical of what I have seen in this area and in these cases.

14 The de fendant has a serious substance -- 0r did have a

15 This is all reflectedserious substance abuse problem as well.

in paragraphs 78 through 82 of the presentence report.

certainly an aggravating -- some can say it's a mitigating

factor, but in the context of this case, I think it's probably

aggravating.

16 That's
1 7

1

1

The defendant appears to have made efforts to be employed

I know he had this job at ABC Cellular that he

referenced and some other employment in an effort to make ends

20

2 1 along the way.

22

23 meet.

24 He has seven kids

25 THE DEFENDANT: Eight.
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1 THE COURT: Three of whom were born during the
2 pendency of this case, I believe.
3 THE DEFENDANT: I have eight children, 12 that I ta ke

4 care of.
5 THE COURT: You had one recently with the new lady.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: So we're talking about a -- wow, a

8 challenging, challenging set of circumstances, to say the

least.
10 So, you know, those are all things that I point to that I

11 in many ways, I think, looking at thisthink are important and,
from a totality of the circumstances, mitigate the of fense.

also seems clear the defendant, as Mr. Nozick pointed out,

withdrew his participation in the Kings.
included in the racketeering conspiracy.
his contacts with those folks along the way.

12 It
13

14 That's why he wasn't

15 But he did maintain

16

17 But it's also true to say that according to the
18 presentence report there's no criminal contacts from 2009, as

19 Mr. Adams points out, all the way until he was arrested in this

20 case
21 Then we need to talk about his cooperation, You know, the

22 defendant -- people cooperate. That's dangerous business
23 have said this a million times. This isn't some child's play
24 here. When people cooperate against the Latin Kings and other

25 gangs, there's real consequences to that and that's why I think
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they need to be richly rewarded for doing that because they do
2

it at great risk to themselves and to their families.
3

And from the proffer from the government, it does appear
that the de fendant has been fully cooperative fron the

beginning and that he stood ready to testify against a very

challenging defendant who did some -- was convicted of doing

some just heinous, heinous acts in the murder of twO elderly
gentlemen .

whatever reason, the government made a strategic decision to
not call him.

certainly think that the defendant is entitled to significant
consideration for that.

6

7

This defendant stood ready to testify.
For9

10

I'm not at all second-guessing that, but I do11

12

13

14

15

And certainly his early cooperation in the case spurred on

So th0se are all things that I
have certainly taken into account and I wi1l take into account.

the pleas of many other people.

16
I can't announce the sentence without talking about what

17 happened recently.

just find it as such an affront to the democratic process; and
maybe you just see it differently.
isn't a political comment at all.

head; you're not going to get my political beliefs.

You don't like to hear it, Mr. Kelly, but I18

19

We had an election -- this20
You could hold a gun to my21

22 THE DEFENDANT: I understand.
23 THE COURT:

But I just tell you, we hold an election,
24

vou count the votes, and the winner wins and the loser shakes
25 their hand and then you go to the next election.

Nobody stole
Stacy L. Drohosky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
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an election, okay.

don't know whether you -- maybe you don't even believe that,

and that's fine.
everything -- every action of everybody who was there.

None of that happened. And so-- and I

3 I'm not holding you accountable for

If you would have asked me permission to go to Washington,

I Would have said, Go for it.

the right thing.
beliefs and to carry a flag and good for you.

Go and March peacefully and do

7 You have a constitutional right to state your

But when you go inside the Capitol while the democratic

10 process is actually occurring, while they're actually counting
the electoral votes for the peaceful transfer of power in this

country, that is so fundamentally Wrong.

Period.

11

12 It's justwrong.
13 Full stop. And I support your -- a hundred percent

14 support your right to protest, your right to be heard. Nobody

15 challenges that.
16 But when I see somebody inside the rotunda with a big

smile on their face and the arm around one of our Founding

Fathers, a statue, to say it's a bridge too far doesn't quite

capture it.

17

18

19

20 THE DEFENDANT: You are right.

21 THE COURT: You with me?

22 THE DEFENDANT: You are right.

23 THE COURT : It's not right whathappened there. It's
24 just not right. So that's all I need to say about that.

25 Listen, the last thing I want to talk about are these
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letters that I have gotten, which I can't even believe it.

mean, it's so overwhelming.
thís, and I was in this line of work for 15 years before that.

Never seen anything like this.

I have been here 18 years doing

3

4

5 I've received letters -- what's interesting about them is

they -- I have read every one very closely and taken, I think,

good notes on them.

spiritual bent to them.

bent to them.

7 And some of them have a religious and

Others have maybe more of a political

But almost uniformly they speak just incredibly

10 Now, they're not all positive, and I willto your châracter

talk about that in a minute, but the overwhelming majority of

them are incredibly positive.

11

12

13 I mean, I received letters from -- I hate to use the term

"old ladies, " but older women, people in their 70s.

talking about how you have personally changed their life.

know, it really alludes me.

14 It's
15 You

16

17 Ms. Fo%, she's a bus driver on Long Island, a grandmother

of four. She found you on Facebook and just thinks you are the18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

cat's meoW. Thinks everything you have done is super positive,

and I'n sure it is.
Ms MacDonald wrote me from somewhere in Minnesota, and

then Ms. Blakely -- these are all older ladies -- from Idaho

Falls, Idaho.
That's a quote.

She said you're the future Martin Luther King.

Ms. Tell ier from Johnston, Rhode Island, she is a
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1 65-year-old grandmother. She's a huge fan of the Streetlights

2 Unity Movement that you have founded.
3 Ms. Caldwell from Phoenix; Ms. Ruggles from Barrington,

4 Illinois. She is a 77-year-old woman.

5 On and on it goes. You have done something to resonate

6 through your social media following, and it's to be commended.
7 I don't know how else to say it. It's to becommended.
8 And the message is a positive one. You speak to the

9 importance of unity and loving people and respect for law

enforcement and authority and institutions, et cetera.

I have taken those all into account.

10 And so

11

12 Now, I would be remiss if I said they were all positive
13 because they're not. I got a letter somehow -- and I take this

14 With a grain of salt, believe me, but somehow or another,

15 Ms Conklin's mom and you --

16 THE DEFENDANT: Oh, God

17 THE COURT : don't see eye to eye. I don't know--
18 what 's at issue here. She might have an axe to grind, I don't

19 know.
20 THE DEFENDANT: A big one.

21 THE COURT: But she has told me some things in this

22 letter that are a little bit troubling, frankly.
23 And there were a couple of others that viewed you as, sort

24 of, a charlatan. Those are in the minority for sure, but it's
25 fair to certainly point those out.
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1 So I say all of this stuff to let you know that I've done

a lot of reading and arrive at a judgment in this case,

I can, trying to weigh all of these aggravating and nitigating
factors - one other thing that I would be remiss.

I have so much paper in front of me.

2 as best

3

4 I'm sorry.
5

6 You know, I don't want you to ta ke this that I'm taking

out some personal animus against you, but I wasn't pleased to

8 see my picture on your Facebook feed.

9 THE DEFENDANT: I apologize. I didn't mean it in a

10 bad way.

11 THE COURT: That alarmed me .

12 THE DEFENDANT: I apologize, Your Honor. I didn't --
13 THE COURT: I don't need to say anything more about

14 that, but I view that as unfair.

15 And I know a lot of these people who wrote to me they did

16 it because you have asked them to.

this is from Facebook or Instagram,

Wrote to your followers back in 2020, Judge Phil simon.

is his address.

For the Facebook -- I think

17 one of them -- where you

18 , Here

19 He's the judge of my case. He's a fair judge .

20 He was kind to me when I stood before him.

to write a letter, here is the address.

lot of traction because there's 228 people whocommented on it

and people who shared it.

prompted many of the letters that I received.

say anything more about that.

If you would like
21 And it must have got a

22

23 So, undoubtedly, that's what

24 I don't need to

25
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So let me formally state the sentence thatI have arrived

at, nd then I will give counsel one final chance to make any

3 final comments.
4 It is the judgment of the Court, pursuant to Title l8,
5 United States Code, Section 3551 and 3553, it's the judgment of

the Court that the de fendant is hereby committed to the custody

of the Bureau of Prisons for a term of 48 months.

be placed on five years of supervised release.

6

7 He'll then
8

Within 72 hours of being released from the custody of the

10 Bureau of Prisons, he'll have to report in person to the

nearest probation office for this district between the hours of

8 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

comply with the following conditions.

11

12 While he's on supervision, he'll have to

13

14 Mr. Adams, I don't believe you have been in front of me,

15 But I can onlybut let me just tell you what my practice is.

do this with your permission.

reference to the presentence report is simply incorporate the

conditions of supervision that were proposed -- or the ones

that I think are appropriate that are set out in the

presentence report.
reference them by number and incorporate the language of the

condition and the reasoning behind each one of these conditions

into my comments here today.

16 What I would like to do in

17

18

19

20 And what I would like to do is just

21

22

23

24 Do you have any objection to that procedure?

25 MR. ADAMS: No objection. No objection, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: We are on page 19 of the presentence

2 It is Document2536. I Will give the four mandatoryreport.
conditions of supervision as well as the following

discretionary conditions:
Number 4, Number 5, Number 6, Number 7, Nunber 8, Number 9,

Number 10, Number 11, and Number 12.

3

4 Number 1, Number 2, Number 3,

5

6

7 I earlier announced -- I misspoke when I said a five-year

8 term of supervision.

term of supervision.

the government has filed a motion that would relieve me from

that .

defendant's release from incarceration.

It is my intention to give a three-year

Even though there's a mandatory minimum,

10

11 So it's a three-year term of supervision upon the

12

13 The sentencing that I have just given is -- well, it's
14 substantially below what the sentencing guidelines recommend.

I have given a sentence that I have given trying to take into

account and balance all of the aggravating and mitigating

factors, and something that I didn't touch upon was -- in any

granular detail -- was all of the other sentencings that
imposed in this case in an effort to try to arrive at -- avoid

unwarranted disparity.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21 So, Counsel, do either of you know of any reasons why the

22 sentence should not be imposed as stated?

23 Mr. Adams?

24 MR. ADAMS: No, Your Honor.

25 THE COURT: Mr. Nozick?
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1 MR. NOZICK: No, Your Honor, but I have a brief

2 comment before we wrap up, but nothing at this point.

3 THE COURT: Let me just ask this: Have I taken all
4 of your principal arguments in aggravation and mitigation into
5 account today?

6 Mr. Adams?

MR. ADAMS : Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Nozick?

MR. NOZICK: Yes, Your Honor.

10 THE COURT: Does either side need any further

11 elaboration as to the sentence that I just announced?

12 MR. ADAMS : No, Your Honor.

13 MR. NOZICK: No, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT: All right. I do order the sentence

15 inposed as stated.

16 What did you want to say, Mr. Nozick?

Judge, just briefly. This Court17

18

19

MR. NOZICK:

mentioned in passing your photo being up online, you know, and

mention of you.

the sane websites, they put stuff up about who the prosecutor

was, which is fine.

Mr. Russo said keep it civil.
Perhaps,

As you knoW, my -- or you may not know -- on

20

21

22

23

24

25

There 's been nothing threatening. And

My photo wasn't up there.

I'm not as photogenic as you.

However, there was some sort of troubling talk about

defense counsel. There was a lot of blaning defense counsel
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that there was a -- that he forgot to put in the motion that he

was going to D.C. and not just Texas.

certainly not Mr. Kelly or Mr. Russo was seeking any revenge,

but there was a fair amount of blaming Mr, Adams.

comments there was some stuff that was troubling, like someone

ought to do something about that lawyer, et cetera.

1

2 And certainly no one --

3

4 And in the

I have passed that information on. I want to make clear,

Judge , to everyone, that I've been watching this case closely,

and there's nothing Mr. Adams did which at all negatively

affected the sentence.

Texas and Washington and he got charged for what he did and did

what he did at the Capitol, the sentence would be the same,

Judge.

8

10 If the motion said he could travel to

11

12

13

14 THE COURT: None of it would have changed.
15 MR. NOZICK: of course it wouldn't. I want to make

16 clear to whoever is listening that the wrong person is being

17 blamed. It wasn't Mr. Adams that took the actions at the

Capitol, and the defendant isn't receiving extra time for

whether the motion mentioned D.C. or just Texas.

being out of district is a violation, but it was the actions

and getting charged that is playing a role in determining the

18

19 Obviously,
20

21

22 sentence. And I don't want there to be any misperception out

23 there that a miscommunication or an error by Mr. Adams caused

24 any additional sentencing.
25 Because, as I said, it's a volatile time. Of Course,
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MI. Kelly and Mr. 2usso are respectiu. and urging respect.

can't control who is reading these things and, sort of, the
tangent that they go off on.

that regard less of the otion we would hae asked ior losing

acceptance and there's nothing hat z. Adams did which

You

3
And I just want to make clear

5

adversely af fected the sentence.
THE COURT: You want to say anything about that,

Mr. Adams?

MR. ADAMS: Thank you to the government. But alsc I
10

wOuld not like anyone who made comnents, that Mr. Relly is not
11 in control of, to affect hin negatively.
12 THE COURT: I mean, I can assure you that -- Nell, I
13 have already stated this on the record.
14 MR. ADAMS: Yes, Your Honor.
15 THE COURT: I don't think I need to repeat it. It's
16 not so much the travel to Washington that matters; it's what

happened in Washington.

imposed as stated.

17
In any event, I do order the sentence

18

19 Mr. Kelly, you have heard the judgment of the Court
20

Pursuant to Rule 32(i) of theimposing sentence upon you.

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, I advise you that you can

appeal your conviction in this case if you think your guilty
plea was somehoW unlawful or involuntary or if there was some

other defect in the proceeding not waived by your guilty plea.

21

22

23

24

25 Ordinarily, you would also have a right to appeal your
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1 sentence under certain circumstances if you think it was
2 contrary to law.
3 Now, a defendant can waive their right to appeal as part

You did enter into an agreement where youof a plea agreement.

waived your right to appeal.

enforceable; but if you think for whatever reason the waiver in

this case is not en forceable, you have to present that theory

to the Court of Appeals by filing a notice of appeal within 14

days of the judgment being entered in your case.

5 Those waivers are generally

7

10 And if you want to file an appeal but you are unable to

pay for the costs of the appeal, you may apply for leave to

appeal in fo rma pauperis, which means you can pursue an appeal

at no cost to you.

11

12

13

14 Mr. Adams, I remind you of your duty to perfect the appeal

15 should your client wish you to do so.

16 Do you want me to make any recommendations as to placement

17 for Mr. Kelly?
18 MR. ADAMS: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you. The

19 government will handle that placement.
20 THE COURT: I won't say anything. Mr. Nozick will
21 take care of that.

22 MR. ADAMS : Thank you, Judge.

23 THE COURT: There were no other counts to dismiss

24 there; is that right, Mr. Nozick?

25 MR NOZICK: Correct, your Honor.

Stacy L. Drohosky, FCRR, CRR, RMR
(219) 852-3462 - stacy_drohosky@innd. uscourts.gov



Page 85

THE CoURT: Al1 right.
2 Well, Mr. Kelly, you know, I know you are disappointed

3 today . I'n sad for you. I'm sad for your family. I just hope

4 you understand where I'n coming from.
5 THE DEFENDANT: I do. I appreciate you. Thank you.

6 THE COURT: And I do, I wish you the best. I

7 sincerely do. I have high hopes for you. I know you' re going

8 to succeed. You'l1 get this behind you and you'll get on a

great track. And there's going to be a lot of people pulling

10 for you, so I wish you well.

11 THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. I wish the same for you.

12 THE COURT: Good luck to you.

13 MR. ADAMS : Thank you, Your Honor.

14 (A recess was had at 12:05 p.m.)

15

16 (End of requested transcript.)
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